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IIE inion

We have sudited the financial statements of Dynamic Micro Finance Share Company, which comprise
the statement of the finuncial position ns at 30 June 2023 and the statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and the stutement of cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the

fimancial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, the financial position of Dynamic Microfinance
Institution Share Company as a1 30 June 2023, its financial perfarmance, statement of changes in oquity
and its cash ows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting
Standands (IFRS) as issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our sudit in' accordance with International  Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilitics under those standards are further described i the Auditor ¥ Responvibilitiex for the
Awidir of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
fccordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountunts’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accounts (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our

dudit of the financial statements in Ethiopia, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code. We believe that the nudit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a busis for our opinion.

The management 15 responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in

accordunce with the ag ting policies ¢
v‘:“' g

_the company, und for such internal control us management




~d

determines is necessary (o enable the preparation of a Company report that is free from matetial
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error

In preparing the financial statements, munagement is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue 45 a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem, and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the company or to
cesse operations, or have no realistic alternative but 1o do 50,

Those charged with governance are responsible for oversecing the Company's financial reporting

Our objoctives are to obtain reasonable sssurance about whether the Company report as a whole 1s free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. and to issve nn auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable sssurance is a high lével of sssutance, but is not & guamntee that an audit
conducted in accordance with ISAs will afways detect & material misstatement when it exists.
Misstaterments can arise from fraud of error and are considered material if, individually or in the

aggregate, they could rensonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements

vt on legal un 1, i

We have no comments to make on the report of the Bourd of Directors of the company so fer as it
related to these financial statements and pursuant to article 375 sub-article 2 of the commercial code of
Ethiopia 2021 and we recommend the approval of the finuncial ststements.

Bilal Mohammed PO Addis Ababa
Chartered Certifietf Accountant (UK) oidiag November 6, 2023

Authorized Auditor (ETH)




DYNAMIC MICROFINANCE INSTITUTION S.C

General Information

Dynamic Micro Finance S.C. is a Microfinance institution which was established on May 2009.
The Company operates in sccordance with the provisions of the Commercial Code of Ethiopia of
1960 und the Micro-Financing Business Proclamation No. 62672009, The Company conducts its
business under the Law on Microfinance activity and is regulated by the National Bank of Ethiopia
(“NBE™).

The Dbjectives of dynamic micro finance institution S,C. as stipulated in the memorandum of
association of the company nre:

To provide credit (loans) in cash to those who are engaged in the small-scale development
und service giving nctivities;

To accept from its customers different saving products;

To render local money transfer services

To buy national securities like treasury bills and camn income as appropriate;

To acquire any movable or none movable properties, including office butlding. with the main
arm of generating income by renting, leasing, mortgaging. trunsferring same for uny income
generting legal activities,

To encourage the setting up or establishment of small projects that can generate income in
towns and rural areas;

To give advige to customers in general and also give consultancy services (o clients in the
technical, marketing, managerial and admimstrative areas as appropriate;

To administer micro financing fund;

To engage in any other activity that may enhance its main objectives and also engage or
participotc in any related line of business




Di'\mc MICROFINANCE INSTITUTION SHARE COMPANY
STA’I'EMENT OF “ANAGF.MENT‘S RESPONSIBIUTIEQ

“The Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 requires the Management to prepare financial statements that
represent the state of affairs of the Company at the end of the finuncial year and the operating results of the
Compuny for thut year. The Commercial Code of Ethiopia 1960 also requires the Management 10 ensure
that the Company keeps proper accounting records which disclose with reasonable secumcy at any time the
financial position of the Compuny. The Management is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company,

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial stutements that
give o true nnd fair view of the statement of financial position of the Company ot the reporting date and of
its comprehensive income in the manner required by the Commercial Code of Ethiopia of 1960, and for
such internal control s management determines 5 necessary (o enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstaternent, whether doe to fraud or error. The responsibilities
include;

a. Designing, implementing and maintrining such internal control as they determine necessary to
ennble the presentation of finsncial staterents that are free from material misstatement, whether due
10 crror or fraud,
b. Selecting suitable sccounting policies supported by reasonable und prudent judgments and estimates,
thar are consistently applied; and
¢. Keeps proper nccounting records that disclose, with reasonable accuracy, the financial position of
the Company.
The Management further nccepts responsibility for the maintenance of sccounting records that may be relied
upon in the preparition of finuncial statements, as well its adequate systems of internal ﬁt.mnciul control.
The Management is of the opinion that the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the
financial af¥itics of the Company and of its profit or loss.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Manugethent 1 indicate that the Company will nol remain & going

concern for ut Jeast twelve months from the Jute of this statement -

_"

S 2h Y ' 4
011800 172
SIS




RS

DYNAMIC MICROFINANCE INSTITUTION 8.C.
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

AS AT 30 JUNE 2023
( In Ethiopian Birr )
Notes 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Cash and cash equivalents 9 68,308,308 75,518,203
Other pssets and prepayments 10 18,369,766 8,673,767
Loans and advances to customers (Net) 1 128.128.309 216.804,779
Propeny, plant and equipment 12 76,146,682 64,503,606
Right of nse Building 13 1,435,205 545,887
[nvestment in securnitics 14 9.589.675 7,205,709
Total assets 201977914 373,251,951
Liabilities
Deposit from customers 15 149 818 542 74,778,818
Borrowings 16 201,560,938 179,901,772
Current income tax Liability 17 894,671 809,669
Other liabilities 17 19,586,181 $.806,723
Finance lease Obligation 2,122,128 1,002,130
Total labilities 374.282 460 265,299,112
Equity
Share capital 18 109,265,000 96,302,000
Legal teserve 19 3,428,298 2,653,136
Retained carming 20 14,728,086 8,723,633
Other Reserve 174,070 274,070
Total equity 127,695,454 107,952,839
Total labbities and equity 501977914 373251951

Chairman - Board of Directo

[1 'i'  Fente 'l

ketu Mamirew
Chiel Executive Officer (CEO)

 November 2023 ;

.l Iy ‘u-‘l:“
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DYNAMIC MICROFINANCE INSTITUTION S.C.
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

[ In Ethiopian Birr )
Notes 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
[mterest income 1 60,832,640 41.865.904
Interost expense 8 30,415,039 19,736,046
Net Interest income before impairment 30417,601 32,129.857
Loan impairment charge {(92,612.21) (1.B58.608)
Net Interest income 30.324.989 20,271,249
Fees and commission income 2 11,027,530 9216911
Net fee and commission income 11,027,530 9216911
Other operating income 3 8,035,133 4,264,602
Net operating income 49,387,652 33,752,762
Expgmu
Sularies and other employee benefits 4 21,117.465 16,308,969
General and administrative expenses 3 9,306,223 7.167.360
Dep. & Amort. on property, plunt and equip 6 1,139,425 1079110
Impairment on Other assets - 17.551
Total other expense 113 4 '
Profit before tax 15,824,539 9,182,772
Office rent income tax 321291
Profit for the year after office rent income tax 15,503,248 9,182,772
Total comprehensive income for the year 15503.248 9,182.772
The sccompunying notes are an integml pant of these financial statements. :
/7T
(/| /
Festave Fente Bc\:fﬂn Aldmirew
Chairman - Board of Directors Chiel Exetutive Officer (CEQ)
November 2023
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DYNAMIC MICROFINANCE INSTITUTION S.C.

STATEMENT OF CHANGE IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023

The necompanying notes are an integrl purt of these financial statements.

= ( In Ethiopian Birr )
Share Retained Legal General Total
Capital Earning  Reserve Reserve

Balance as at 1 July 2021 75431000 11,682,745 2,193997 274070 89,581,812
Profit for the year 9,182,772 9.182.772
Incresse of the share capital- cash 8,450,880 £.469 889
Incresse of the share capital 12401112 (11,682.745) 718,368
Transfer 10 legal reserve (459,139) 459,139 .
Balance 30 June 2022 96,102,001 723,634 2.653.136 274070 107,952 840
Balance 30 July 2022 96,302,001 8,723,634 2,653,136 274,070 107952840
Profit for the year 15,503,248 15,503,248
Incrense of the shure capital- cash 4.239.367 4,239,567
Increuse of the share capital 8,723,634 (8,723,634) -
Transfer to legal reserve {775,162) 775,162 -
Balunce 30 June 2023 109265000 14728086 3428298 274070 I27.695.455

" Testiye Fente
Chalrman - Board of Dicectors
November 2023

Chief Execu

Bwkry Alamirew

November 2023

ve Officer (CEQO)



DYNAMIC MICROFINANCE INSTITUTION S.C.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2023
( In Ethioptan Birr )

30 June2023  30Junc2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash Mows Trom operating activities (19,312,096) (86,702,449)
Net eash (outflow yinflow from operating activities (19,312,096) (86,702,449)
Cash Nows from lnvesting activities

Purchinse of property, plant and equipment (11,643,046) (20,613,644)
Right of use Building (§89,317) (509,137)
Purchases of investment securitics (2,383.965) (1,572.997)
Net cash (outflow Vinflow from investing activities (14,916,328) (22.695,777)
Cash flows from fnancing activities

Proceeds (settlement) from bormowings 21,639,165 151,911,234
Proceeds from ssues of shares 4239367 8,469,889
Finance Lease Obligation 1,119,998 51,314
Net cash (outflow)inflow from financing activities 27,018,530 160,432,437
Net inerease/(decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents (7,209,895) 51,034,211
Cash und cash equivalents at the boginning of the yesr 75,518,203 24,483,992
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year o8, 308,308 715,518,203

The aecompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statetnents,

Tesfaye Fente L Aladirew
Chuirman - Board of Directo Chief Exgcutive Officer (CEO)
November 2023

November 2

S 4o 264
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DYNAMIC MICROFINANCE INSTITUTION S.C.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS AT 30 JUNE 2023
{ in Ethiopian Birr )

1. Net Interest Income

Net interest income for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 con be presented as
follows:

Interest income is arising from:

30 June 2023 g
Loans to customers 60,329,362 40,763,397
Piacements with banks 503,278 1,102,506
Total interest income 60,832,640 41,865,904

1. Fees and Commission
Total Fees and commissions for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 are presented as
follows:

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Setvice charge income 9,611,762 7,288,758
Income from Insurance 254,951 326,332
Income frum Penalty 1,074,337 1,508,764
Income from Registration 86,480 93,060
Tots! fees und commission income 11.027.530 9216911

3. Other operating Income
Other operating income for the years ended 3U June 2023 and 30 June 2022 can be  as presented follows:

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Dividend income 497,871 §72.997
Other mcome 7,537,262 1,691,608
Total other vperating income 8.035.133 4.204,602

4. Salaries and other employee benefits
Staff reluted expenses for the years ended June 20 2023 and June 302022 are presented as
follows:

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Salary 15,889,896 12,659,240
Pension Cost-Defined contribution plan 1,666,521 1,378,409
Staff allowance 1,182.322 1,097,256
Other Staff expenses 1,152,807 .
Leave expense 222,369 807,910
Employees Benefit 415,557 149,723
Sevemnce pay 587,003 213,431
Total salaries pud GHier employee 21117465 16,305,969

benefits




S General and administeative expenses
General and administrative expenses for the vears ended June 30 2023 and June 30 2022 can be
presented as follows:

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Rent expense 2,047,153 2,004,196
Per diem & travel 460,402 238,511
Stationary and printing 1,335 598 908,274
Other allowances (Board) 908,000 936,000
Communication 397,199 506,480
Marketing iund promotion 103,915 125,674
Insurance 124,044 126,802
Miscellanevus 42,002 64,121
Transportation 459,790 164,678
Fuel & lubricants 36673 184910
Emertninment 4,104 15,231
Donation 137.236 24 000
Maintenance & repair 475,391 199,726
Training 612,676 404,283
Wage 232072 178,004
Cleaning and supplies 24,409 15,297
Professional fee : 34,500
Service charge 587,077 192418
Audit fee 82,22 84,100
Utilitics 120,485 44276
Membership fee 25,000 10,000
Other operuting expense 413,395 672,155
License foc 17,374 9,721
Total general and administrative expenses 9,306,223 7.167.360

6 Depreciution and amortization on property, plant and equipment and ROU-Building

Depreciation and Amontization expense for the years ended June 30 2023 snd June 30 2022 can
be presented as follows;

30 June 2023 20 Jung 2022
Depreciation expense on PPE 2,496,629 752,606
Amortizations expense on ROU-Building 2,796 326504
Total depreciation expense 3.139.425 1.079.110

7 Impairment allowance on other assets
A reconcilistion of the allowance for impairment losses for other assets is as follaws:
Balance a1 the beginning of the year 1,053,431 1,035,880
(Reversalycharge for the year (185.202) 17,551

Balance ot the end of 1053431




Interest expense is arising from:

Interest expense on customer deposit Interest
expensc on bank loan

Total interest expense on linancial Habilities
recorded at amortized cost:

Notes to the statement of cash flows
u) Cash used in operations
Cush from operations are presented as follows:

Profit before tiax

Adjustments for non-cash items:
Depreciation of property and equipment
Loan impairment Charge

Impairment loss on other assets

Changes in operating assets and tabilities:
-Decrense/ (Inerease) in loans and advances
Decrease | Increase) in other assets
«Ingrease’ | Decrense) in customer's deposit
-incresse’ (Decrease) in Tax Liability
-Increase’ (Decrease) in other labilitics

b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand
Deposits with local banks

10.0ther assets and prepayments

Prepayment

Inventory

Prepuid asset - staff loan

Other receivables

Impairment allowance « other asset
Gross amount

Total other usset and Prepayment

Current portion
Noncurrent portion
Total financial assets

0
9,183,389
21,231,650

30.415,039

30 June 2023
15,824,539

3,139,425
92612

-

(111,613,029)
{9,696,000)
71,775,897
85,002
11,079,458

(19.312.096)
30 June 2023

68,308,308
68,308,308

30 June 2023
10,092,510
2,889,995
5.962.477
(868,229
18,369,706

18.369.766

30 June 2023
15,274,461

3,095,306

6,585,202
13,150,845

19,736,046

30 June 2022
9,182,772

1,079,110
1,858,608
17,551

(93,012,942)
(3.507,007)
1 7,695,695)

(290,208)
5,665,363

(86.702.449)

30 June 2022
80
75,518,123
75.518.20

30 June 2022
1,761,645

377,534
2,577,282
5,010,738

(1,053,431)
8,673,767

8,673,767

) 22
7,212,237
1. 461,530
8,673,767



11 Loans to customers
Loan products

Agriculture

Consumption

Trale
Housing
MSE

Wiash Loan

MIS Loan

Specianl Loan

Vehicle

Loans to customers (Gross)

Less: Loan impairment allowance
Louns to customers (Net)

12 Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment as af 30 June 2022 and 2025 can be presented as follows:

30 June 2023
15,568,545
4,607,788

247 825,605
45,996,472
1992227
2,590,620

284,559
5.410,000
4,275,112

328,550,928

(422.616)

328,128,349,

30 June 2022
12,948,887

2,352,210
151,123,451
36,138,258

4,298 904

1,370,425

257,626

1,650,000

6,798,135
216,937,895

(133,116)

216804

Buildings/ Office
Motur Compnter

Cost canstruction in Equipment & Total

progress Vehicles Equipment Furniture
As 8t 30 June 2021 40,591,604 2,293,739 2,137,819 68,306 45891 467
As a1 01 July 2021 40,591,604 2,293,739 2,137,814 K68,300 45891467
Additions 14,596,163 4267389 366,294 1,083,798 20,613,644
PPE Ax at 30 June 6,561,128 2504113 1,952,103 66,505,111
022 88,487,767
Asat 01 July 2022 S5487.767 6,561,128 2504113 1,952,103 66,505,111
Additions R 023.595 JNTILRTR 2768223 1 13.563,696
Accumulsted
depreciation
As ot 01 July 2022 - 441,124 366,294 3oL702 1,169,120
Charge for the yeur 813,200 975,566 868,114 396,158 3,053,035
As at 30 Jung 2023 813,200 | 141669 1,234,408 787857 4,222,155
PPE As at 30 Juny
2023 62,098,162 S.144.438 4,341,582 3062469 76,146,052

12




30 June 2023

13 ROU Building

4

15

o

Cost:
At the beginning of the year 3,085,688
Addition 1,676,495
Al the end of the year 4,762,183
Accumulated depreciation:
At the beginning of the yew 2084, 182
Charge for the year 642,796
At the end of the year 3326978
Net book value 1,435,208
Investment

30 June 2023
Tschay Bank 3 100,000.00
Tsehay Insurance 8.C, 3,108,000,00
ET-Inclusive 2,943 485.56
Buna International Bank 438,189.00

2.389,675

Deposits from castomers

30 June 2022

2,720,933
509,137
3,230,069

2,357,678
326,504
2,684,182
343,887

30 June 2022
l -mvooo

2,883,138
2,943 486

379,086
7,205,709

Deposit from customers as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 comprises the following:

30 June 2023
Voluntary Saving 66,793,483
Compulsory saving 17,376,160
Tiume Deposit 65,648,899
Total Deposit 149.818.542
Borrowings

June 2

Bunna International Bank 2,061,961 98
Pevelopment Bunk of Ethiopiz (DBE) 41,927 674,00
Loan From Cooperative Banks (COB) 100,897 644 35
Loan From Abyssinia Banks (BOA) 2125051517
Loan From Awash Hanks 3542314205
Total Borrowings ul 3

Sl 268

OriMies 3¢
B2iosnie

30 Tune 2022
44,086,584
12,478,747
18,213,487
J4.778.818

30 June 2022
3,078,151

27598700
74,109,921
25,115,000
50,000,000

179.901.972



17 Income tax & Other Liabilities

18

9

20
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Other labilitics as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 comprises the following:

30 June 2023 30 June 2022

Differed service charge income - 114,727
VAT Paynble 1,309,148 -
Accrued leave payable 1,176,710 926,768
Accounts payable 180,583 -
Other Payables 16,418,699 7404 149
Employment income tax payuble 573,381 809,669
Office rent profit tax paysble 321.29)
Acerved severance Pay 301,040 361,084
Total other abilities 20780852 2616392
Share Capital

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Authorized:
120,000 Ordinary shares of 1 000 Bier ¢ach 120,000,000 120,000,000
fssued and fully paid: 109,265,000 96,302,000
I egal Reserve
Total Jegal rescrve a3 at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 20221 is as follows:

30 Junc 2023 30 June 2022
At the beginning of the year 2633150 2,193,997
Transter from profit oc loss 775,162 439,139
Al the end of the year 3,428,298 633,130
Retained Earnings
Total retained carnings as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 is as follows:

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
At the beginning of the year 8,723,633 11,682,744
Profit for the year 15:503,248 9,182,772
Capitulized to paid-up capital (8,723,633) (11,682,744
Transfer to legal reserve (775,162) (459,139)
At the end of the year 14,728,086 8,723,633

Earnings Per Share
Earmmgs per share for the year is computed by dividing the operating profit before legal reserves by
simple averuge number of shares outstanding ducing the yeor.

30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Profit for the year 15,503,248 9,182,772
1,027,835 853,665

1%




22 Taxation charge
According to the Micro Finance Proclamation No. 626/2009 Asticle 23, s micro finance that fully

ploughs back the profit 1o the business activity is exempt from profit tax. But if the company
distributes the profit to shareholders, it shall pay profit tax as any Business entity.

23. Commitments and Contingencies

23.1 Litigation

In the ordinary cousse of business, organizations are usunlly subject 10 legal actions and complaints.
Following the organization's customers' failure 1o meet Joan repayment obligations, the
organization is involved in legal disputes against such custoters. The highest possible sutcome
from such legal disputes is the amount of foans receivable from such customers (including accrued
interest and other charges). As It is not certain that all the customers will meet the repayment
obligations, the organization recognizes provision for impairment for such loans.

23.2. Operating lease Commitment
The institution leases offices under cancelable operating lease, The lease typically runs for a period
of 2 years with an option 1o renew the lease after the operating lease commitment date,

24, Financial Instruments - Risk Management

As a financial institution, the organization is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial
nstruments. This note describes the organization’s objectives, policies and processes for managing
those risks and the methods used to measure them. Further Quantitative information in respect of
these risks is presented throughout these financial statements financial assets and financial liabilities

that are liquid or have a short term maturity. Tt is assumed that the carrying amounts approximate
10 their fair value

General Objectives, Policies and Processes

The management has overall responsibility for the determination of the organization’s risk
management objectives and policies and whilst retaining ultimate responsibility for them. It has
deleguted the authority for designing and operating processes that ensure the effective

implementation of the objectives and policies to the ergamzations finance function.

15
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The overall objective of the management is 10 set polices that seck 1o reduce risks as fur as possible
without unduly affecting the organization’s competitiveness and flexibility, Further details
regarding these policies are set out below through its operations. The Organization is exposed to
the following finuncial risks:

* Credit risk
* Liquidity risk
* Market risk

* [nterest rate risk

24.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that one party 1o  financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other

party by failing to discharge an obligation. Exposurc to credit risk arises as a result of the lending
and other transactions with counterparties giving rise to finuncial assets.

As the organization is providing microloans to customers as the core business activity, credit risk is
of crucial importance similar to any micro financing institution. MFI risk management process
avoid significant financial damage by uses various methods 1o identify and manage them effectively

The Organization has developed policies and procedures for the management of credit exposures
both for on balance sheet exposures including guidelines to limit portfolio concentration and the
establishment of a credit committee which actively monitors credit risk.

The organization continuously monitors the performunce of individual credit exposures and
branches and regularly reassesses the creditworthiness of its customers. The review is based on
updated financial information of clients obtained by credit staff’ from monitoring und later the
information is crosschecked on a risk basad assessment by department of internal nudit and risk
management,

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure 1o credit nisk at the reporting dates was:

16




30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Cash and cash equivalents excluding Cash o8 gg 308 308

75,518,203
hangd
Loans to customers (OGross) 128,550,925 216,937,895
Total credit risk exposure 396,859,233 292,456,098

24.1.1 Management of credit risk

In measuring credit risk of loans and receivables to various counterparties, the Institution considers
the character and capacity of the obligor to pay or meet contractunl obligations, current exposures
W A coaher peotyioiesr et e Sieely Sotre deveropmens, et ey of e
counterparty/obligor; and the likely recovery mtio in case of defoult obligations-value of collateral
and other ways out. The Institution’s policy 15 to lend principally on the basis of the customer’s
repuyment capacity through various evaluation. However as much as possible the institution ensures
that the loans are backed by collateral to reflect the nisk of the obligors and the nature of the facility,

A. Probabitity of Default
This is the probability that an obligor or counterparty will default over a given period, usually one

year. Tlas can be calculated on portfolio by portfolio basis or collectively depending on availability
of historical data,

B. Loss Given Default
Loss Given Delault is defined as the portion of the loan determined to be imrecoverable at the time

of loan defiult (1 = recovery rate), Our methods for estimating LGD includes both quantitative and
qualitative factors,

C. Exposure at Default
This represents the amount that 15 outstanding at the point of default. Its estimation includes the

drawn amount and expected utilization of the undrawn commitment at default,

Muximum exposure to credit risk before collateral held or credit enhancements.
The wstitution's maximum exposure to credit risk at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 is represented

by the net carrying amounts in the statement of financial position us follows:
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Notes 30 2023 30 June 2022

Cash and cash equivalents 9 68,308,308 75,518,203
Other assets and prepayments 10 18,369,766 8,673,767

Loans and advances to customers (Net) 11 328,128,309 216,804,779
Total financial assets 414.806,383 300,996,748

2412, Amounts arising from Expected Credit Loss (ECL)

. Inputs, assumptions and techniques used for estimating impairment as per accounting
policy
il.  Significant increase in eredit risk

When determining whether the risk of default on 4 financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the mstitution considers reasanable and supportable information that is
relevant and available without undue cost or effort, This includes both quantitative and qualitative
information and analysis based on the institution’s historical credit experience including forward
looking information.

The objective of the assessment is to identify whether a significant increase in credit risk has
oceurred for an exposure by comparing:

* The remaining lifetime probability of default (PD) as at the reporting date;

e The institution uses different criteria for determining whether there has been a significant
merease in oredit risks such as quantitative test based on movement in PD and Qualitative
indicators

jil.  Generating the term structure of PD
Credit risk grades are a primary input into the determination of the term structure of PD for
exposures. The institution collects performance and default information about its tredit risk
exposures analyzed by type of product and borrower, The institution analyses the data
collected and generate estimates of the remaining lifetime PD of exposures and how these
are expected to change as a result of the passuge of time,

iv.  Determining whether credit risk has increased significantly

The Institution sssesses whether ¢redit risk has increased significantly since initial

recogniton af cporting date. Determining whether an increasse in credit risk is



significant depends on the characteristics of the financial instrument and the borrower, The
credit risk muty also be deemed o have increased significantly since initial recognition based
on qualitative factors link to the institution’s credit risk mansgement processes that may not
otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a tumely basis. This will be the case
for exposures that meet certain heightened risk criteria, such as placement on a watch list.
Such qualitative factors are based on its expert judgment and relevant historical experiences.

The credit risk may also be deemed o have increased significantly since initial recognition
is based on qualitative factors linked to the Institution’s credit risk management processes
that may not otherwise be fully reflected in its quantitative analysis on a timely basis. This
Will be the case for exposures that meet certain heightened risk criteria, such as placement
on a watch hist. Such qualitative factors are based on its expent judgment and relevant
historical experiences.

The institution considers that a significant increase in credit risk occurs when the number of
past due days increase. Past due days are determined by counting the number of days since
the earliest elnpsed due date in respect of which full payment has not been received. Due
dutes are determined without considering any grace period that might be available to the
borrower.

Ifthere is evidence that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk relative to mnitial
recognition, then the loss allowance on un instrument returns 10 being measured us 12-month
ECL. Some qualitutive indicators of an increase in credit risk. such as delinquency or
forbearunce, may be indicative of un increased risk of default that persists after the indicator
itself has ceased to exist, In these cascs, the Institution determines & probation period during
which the financial asset is required to demonstrate good behavior to provide evidence that
is credit risk has declined sufTiciently, When contractual terms of a loan have been modified,
evidence that the criteria for recognizing lifetime ECL are no longer met includes o history
of up-to-date payment performance against the modified contractual terms. The Institution
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monitors the effectiveness of the criterta used 1o identify significant increases in credit risk
by regular reviews.

Definition of default

The Institution considers a financial usset to be in default when:

The borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the institution in full, without
recourse by the imstitution 1o actions such as realizing security (if any is held);

The borrower is more than 90 days past due on any material credit obligation to the
Institution.

It is becoming probable that the borrower will restructure the asset us & result of bankruptey
due fo the borrower's inubility 1o pay its credit obligations.

In ussessing whether u borrower is in default, the institution considers indicators that are:

vi

Qualitative: ¢.g. breaches of covenant;

Quantitative: e.g. overdue status and non-payment on another obligation of the same issuer
to the mstitution;

Based on data developed internally and obtained from external sources.

Inputs im0 the assessment of whether n financial instrument is in default and their
significance may vary over time to reflect changes in circumstances,

Incorporation of forward-looking information

The Institution incorporates forward-looking information into both the assessment of whether

the credit risk of an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and the

measurement of ECL. External information which includes cconomie datn and forecasts, an

exterml and independent macroeconomic date body will be consideéred in the forward looking

information assessment; this is i addition to industry-fevel. semi-annual NPL trends across
statically comparable sectors. The Institution has identified and documented key drivers of credit
risk and credit losses for each portfolio of financial instruments and, using an analysis of
historical data, has estimated relationships between macro-cconomic variables and credit rigk.

vil.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs into the measurement of ECL are the term structure of the following variables;

-~

e Probability of default (PD);
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o Loss given default (LGD); and

e Exposure at defsult (EAD),
ECL for exposures in Stage 1 is culculated by multiplying the 12-month PD by LGD and EAD,
Lifetime ECL is caleulated by multiplying the lifetime PD by LGD and EAD.

The methodology of estimating PDs is discussed above under the beading ‘Generating the term
structure of PD’,

LGD is the magnitude of the likely loss if there is a default. The Institution estimates LGD
parameters based on the history of recovery rates of claims against defaulted countérparties. The
LGD models consider the structure, collateral, seniority of the claim, counterparty industry and
recovery costs of any collateral that Is integral to the financial asser,

EAD represents the expected exposure in the event of a defiult, The mstitution derives the EAD
from the current exposure to the counterparty and potential changes to the current amount allowed
under the contriet and arising from amortization. The EAD of a financia) ssset is its gross carrying
amount at the time of default. For lending commitments, the EADs are potential future amounts
that may be drawn under the contract, which are estimated based on historical observations and
forward-looking forecasts. For financial guarantees, the EAD represents the amount of the
guaranteed exposure when the financial guarantee becomes payable. For some financial assets,
EAD is determined by modeling the mnge of possible exposure outcomes at various points in time
using scenario and statistical techniques.

As deseribed above, and subject to using 4 maximum of a 12-month PD for Stage 1 financial assets,
the mstitution measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period
(including any borrower's extension options) over which it is exposed 0 credit risk. even if, for
credit risk management purposes, the institution considers 4 longer period.
Where modeling of a parameter is carried out on a colloctive basis, the financial instruments are
grouped on the basis of shared risk characteristics that include:

e Instrument type,

o Credit risk grading;

e Collateral type;
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* Date of initial recognition;

* Remaining term o maturity:

o Industry: and

e Geographic location of the borrower,
24.2 Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of a financial instrument will decrease because of changes
In-market factors. Market risk arises from the institution's use of interest bearing and foreign
currency financial instruments. It is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial
(nstrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates (currency risk) and interest
rates (interest rate risk), The institution dose not ordinarily engage in trading activities as there are
no sctive markets in Ethiopia

24.3 Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk arises from potential changes in market intercst rates that can adversely affect the
fair values of the financial assets and liabilities of the Institution. This risk can arise from maturity
mismatches of ussets and linbilities as well as from the reprising charncteristics of such assets and
liabilitics. The Institution's all interest bearing assets and liabilities are at fixed interest rates
therefore market interest rate fluctuations do not affect the institution's income or expenses.

The data below summarizes the institution's eXxposure to interest rate risks. The aggregated amounts
of the institution’s interest bearing financial assets and interest bearing financial liabilities at
carrying amount as at 30 June 2023 and 30 June 2022 is presented as follows:

Assets Note 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Cash and balances with banks 9 68,308,308 75,518,203
loans und advances to customers (Net) I 328,128,309 216,804,779
Investment in securities 14 9,589,675 7,205,700

Total interest bearing financial assets 406,026,291 299.528.091
Liabilities

Deposit from customers 15 149 818,542 74,778,818

Borrowings 16 201,560,938 179,901,772

Total interest beuring financlal liabilities 351,379,480

Net interest sensitivity gap
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24.4 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk refers to the availability of fund to meet loan repayment and other financial
commitments associated with financinl instruments as they actually fall due.

In order to manage liquidity risk. the institution performs regular monitoring of future expected
cash flows which is part of assets Habilitics management process, The hquidity risk as of 30 June
2023 and 30 June 2022 is presented as follows:

Note 30 June 2023 30 June 2022
Financial assets
Cash and cash cquivalents 9 68,308,308 75,518,203
Loans and advances to customers (Net) 11 328,128,309 216,804,779
Total financial assets 396,436,617 292,322,982
Financial Liabilities
Deposit from customers 15 149,818,542 74778818
Horrowings 16 201,560,938 179,901,772
Current tncome tx linbility &
Other habilities |7 20,780,852 9.616,392
Finance lease Obligation 2,122,128 1,002,130
Total Financial liabilities 374,282 460 265.299.112
Liquidity gap 22154511 27134251

25, Financial risk management
25.1 Introduction

As a financial institution, the Institution is exposed to risks that arise from its use of financial
instruments. This note describes the institution's objectives, policies and processes for managing
those risks and the methods used 1o measure them. Fuither quantitative information in respect of
these risks is presented throughowr these finaocial statements. Financial assets and .ﬁnancial
lubilities: thit are liquid or have a short term maturity s assumed that the carryving amounts
approxumate to their fair value.

25.2 Risk management structure

Risk is inherent in the institution's activities, but is managed through a process of ongoing

identification, measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process
of risk management is critical to the institutions’ continumg profitability and cnfh/i,ndjxid&nl within
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the institution is accountable for the risk exposures relating 10 his or her responsibilities. The
institution is exposed to credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and various opérating risks.

Risk management 1s one component of all core processes of the Institution. In its day-to-day

activities, the institution is exposed 1o various types of financial risks, the most important of which
are credit risk, liquidity risk. interest rate risk and operational risk,

The institution’s risk managerment and control 15 based on the following key principles:
¢ The board of directors appraves the risk management policies of the institution and ensures
their implementation,

e The management is responsible for implementing the policies in 8 manner that limits risks
associated with each risk exposure,

* Appropriate and effective internal control exists to safeguard assets and o ensure compliance
with relevant laws, regulations and institutional policies.

e The nsk management and monitoring is supported by s management information system that
supplics umely and consolidated reports on the finuncial conditions. operating performance
and risk exposure of the mstitution.

The Independent Risk Management and Compliance function is established to review compliance
with the approved risk management policies and various risk related committees are established
which are responsible for the implementation of the risk management policies,

The mamagement has overall responsibility for the determination of the institution’s risk
management objectives und retaining ultimate responsibility for designing and operating processes
that ensure the effective implementation of the objectives and policies.

The overall objective of the management is 10 ser mechanisms that seek to reduce risks as far as

possible without unduly affecting the institution’s competitiveness and flexibility.

Through 115 operations, the institution 1s exposed to the following financial risks:
* Credir risk
* Liquidity risk
* Market risk
* Interest mte nisk
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25.3 Risk measurement und reporting systems
The Institution’s risks are measured using a method that reflects both the expected loss likely to

anse in normal circumstances and unexpected losses, which are an estimate of the ultimate actual
loss based on statistical models. The models make use of provabilites denved from histories)
experience, adjusted 1o reflect the economic environment.

Monitoring and controlling risks is primanly performed based on limits established by the
Institution. These limits reflect the business strutegy and market environment of the institution as
well as the level of risk that the institution is willing to accept, with additional emphasis on selected
regions. In addition, the institution’s policy is 10 measure and monitor the overall risk bearing

capacity in relation to the aggregate risk exposure across all risk types and activities.

25.4 Risk mitigation

Risk controls and mitigates, identified and approved for the Institution, are documented for existing
and new processes and systems. The Institution uses risk tolerance limit as a risk limit control. This
risk tolerance limit compaosed of risk limit by economic sector, by credit product and by maturity.
There also limitations impased by the regulatory organ which all Microfinance Institutions should

comply.
As part of the credit risk mitgation which is the main identified financial risk of the institution, an

appropridte risk environment, credit policies and procedures are established. In addition, there is
portfolio management, appropriate credit adtministration and monitoring and Yoan review fanction,

The other credit risk mitigntion measure is obtaining sufficient collateral securities and guarantees
for certain loan products as the second wity out in case of default.

5.5, Financial instruments by category

Financial instruments are classified in the statement of financial position in accordance with their
legal form and substance us per the followings.

Notes S0 June 2023 30 June 2022

Cash and cash equivalents Y 68,308,308 75,518,203
Other assets and prepayments 10 I8,369,766 8,673,767
Loans and advances 1o customers (Net) 11 328,128,309 216,804,779

Total linancial assets




26. Transuctions with related parties

Related purties or transactions with related parties us defined by IAS “Related party disclosures”
could be ane or more of the following:

) Parties that directly or indirectly through one or more intermediarics: control or are
controlled by or are under common control with the company this includes parents
subsidianes and fellow subsidiaries: have an interest in the organization that gives then
signiticant influence over the orgamizanon; and that have joint control over the company;

b) Members of key management personnel of the company or its parent:

€) Close members of the family of any individuals referred 1o in 4 or b:

d) Parties that are entities controlled jointly controlled or significantly influenced by or for

which significant voting power in such entity resides with directly or indirectly any
individual,
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Accounting Policy

L. Basis of preparation
a. Statement of compliance
The Compuny has prepared a full set of financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2022 in

secordance with Internationnl Financial Reporting Standards (1FRSs), International Accounting
Standards and Interpretations (collectively IFRSs). The financial statements comprise the statoment
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of financial position, the statement
of changes in cquity, the statement of cash flows und the notes 1o the financial statements. The
finunciul statements for the period ended 30 June 2019 are the first financial statements the company
has prepared in accordance with IFRS.

b. Basis of measurement
The measurement basis used is the historical cost basis except where otherwise stated in the

accounting  policies  below, Modified valustion applied  for certain financinl instrument
classifications that shall be measured at fair valuc.

¢. Functional and presentation currency
The financial statements are presented in Ethiopian Birr (Birr),

d. Use of estimates and judgments
The preparmation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certuin critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management 1o exercise its judgment in the process of
applying the accounting policies. Changes in assumptions may have a significant unpact on the
financial statements in the period the assumplions changed. Management believes that the
underlying assumptions are appropriate and that financial statements therefore present the financial

position and results fairly. The wreas involving o higher degree of judgment or complexity,
assumptions and estimates are significant 1o the financial statetments.

e. Going concorn
The financial stutements have been prepared on 4 going concem basis. The management has no

doubt that the institution would remain in existence after 12 months,




2. Summaries of Significant Accounting Policies

The principul accounting policies applied in the prepamtion of these financial statements are set out
below.

These palicies have been consistently applied to all the yeans presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Changes in significant accounting policies

2.1.1 New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted during the vear

A number of new standurds are effective from 30 June 2018 but they do not have a material effect
on the Institutions financial satements. Due 1o the transition method chosen by the Institution in

applying [FRS 9, comparative information thruughout these fimncial statements has not generally
been restated 1o reflect its requirements

The adoption of IFRS 15 did not impact the timing or amount of fee and commission income from
contracts with customers and the related assets and habilities recognized during the year.
Accordingly, the impact on the comparative information is limited to new disclosure requirements.

The effect of initially applying these standards is mainly attributed to the following:

* Anincrease in impaitment losses recognized on financial assets;

* Additional disclosures related 1o IFRS 9; and

*  Additional disclosures related 1o IFRS |5
Except for changes noted below, the Institution has consistently applied the dccounting policies to
all periods presented in these financial statements

a. IFRS IS Revenue from Contracts with Customers
Thiy standard replaces 1AS 11 Construction Contracts, [AS [8 Revenue, IFRIC 13 Customer
Loyulty Programs, IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate, IFRIC |8 Transfer of

Assets from Customers and SIC-3] Revenue — Baner of Transactions Involving Advertising
Services.

The standard contains a single model that applies 1o contracts with customers and two approaches
1o recognizing revenue: at a point in time or over time. The standard specifies how and when the

Institution will recognize revente as well a5 requining such entivies 1o provide users of fin cial

stalements with more informative, relevant disclosures.
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The Institution applied IFRS 15 o | July 2018 using the modified retrospective approach in which
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard is recognized nt the date of initial
application ss an adjustment to the opening balance of Retained earmings as at | July 2018 without
restating comparative periods.

The standard provides a single, principles based five step mode! 1o be applied to all contracts with
CUSIOmETS in recognizing revenue being: identify the contract(s) with a customer, identifying the
performance obligation in the contract, determining the transaction price, allocating the transaction
price to the performance obligation in the contrict: and recognizing revenue when (or as) the entity
satisfies u performance obligation,

* Step 12 Identify the contraet(s) with a customer

* Step 20 Identity the performance obligations in the contract.

* Step 3: Determine the transsction price,

* Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract.

* Step 3¢ Recognize revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies o performance obligation.

Under [FRS 15, an entity recognizes when (or as) a performance obligation is satistied, i.c. when
‘control” of the goods or services underlying the particular performance obligation is transferred to
the customer. More prescriptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 1o deal with specific scenarios.
Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by IFRS 15.

Amendments to IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers 10 clanty three aspects of the
standard (identilying petformance obligations, principal versus agent considermtions, and licensing)

and 1o provide some transition relief for modified contracts and completed contracts.

b. IFRS 9: Financial Instruments
The institution has adopted [FRS 9, with effect from July I, 2018, As permitted by the standard,
comparative figures have not been restated and these are presented in accordance with the
companies’ previous policies, Both the new and the old accounting policies are described below
where appropriate.




. Recognition and de-recognition

The institution initially recognizes receivables from customers on the date on which they are
originated. All other financial instruments are recognized on the transaction date, which is the date
on which the Institution becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument, A financial
asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable 1o its dcquisition or issue. Financial instruments,
comprising financial assets and financial linbilities, are recognized in the statement of financial
position when the institution becomes a party 1o the contrctual provisions of the instrument. The
institution derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the usset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in # transaction in which
substantially all of the risks und rewsrds olownership of the financial asset are trunsferred or where
it neither transfers nor retains substuntially all of the risks and rewords of ownership and loses
control. When control is retained, the institution continues to recognize the financial asset to the
extent of its continuing involvement,

Financial assets are also de-recognized when they are written off. Financial assets are written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of further recoveries even though there may be enforcement
actions ongoing. The institution derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations
are discharged, cancelled, or expire. Financial assets and financial linbilities are may offsct and the
et amount presented in the statement of financial position when the institution currently has a
legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and intends either 1o settle them on & net
basts or 10 realize the asset and settle the habilty simultancously

il Classification and measurement E
a. Policy applicable from July 1, 2018
All financial assets and liabilities are mitially recognized at fair value, which is usually the
transaction price. Subscqgmmly. measurement  depends on the financial  assets/liabilities
classification as follows:
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»  Financiol ussets measured at fair value through profic or loss (FVPL)
Non-equity financial assets are classified as FVPL if they arise from contracts which do not give
rise to cash flows which are solely principal and interest, or otherwise where they are beld in o
business model which mainly realizes them through sale. Such assets are re-measured 1o fair value
4t the end of each reporting period. Gains and losses arising from re-measurement are taken to profit
or loss. us are transaction costs.

*  Financial assets measured at FVOCT
Non-equity financial assets are classified as FVOC] where they arise from contracts which give
rise 10 contractual cash lows which are solely principal and interest and which sre held in a business
model which realizes some through sale and some by holding them to maturity. They are recognized
initiadly at fair value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, or in the case of trade
receivables, al the transaction price.

At the end of each reporting petiod they are re-measured to fair value, with the cumulstive gain or
loss compared 1o their amortized cost being recognized in other comprehensive income and in the
fair value reserve, except for the recognition in profit and loss of expected credit losses, interest
income and foreign exchange gains and losses. When these assets are derecognized, the cumulative
gain or loss is reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

* Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Fimancial assets are held at amortized cost when they arise from contracts which give rise to
contructusl cash flaws which are solely principal and interest and ure held in a business model which
miinly holds the ussets 1o collect contractual cush flows
Finanuial assets measured nt amortized cost that are not purchased or orginated credit-impaired are
measured ot amortized cost using the effective interest method. For those purchased or originated
credit-impaired, the institution applies the credit-adjusted effective interest rate since initial
recognition. These assets are also subject to impairment losses. Interest income is calculated based
on the gross carrying amount of the finuncial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired, in
which case interest income is caleulated on the amortized cost (i.c. Bross carrying amount less Joss
allowance). Interest income is included in finance income.
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b. Policy applicable before July 1, 2018
All financial assets and liabilities are initially recognized ot fuir value, which is usually the

trunsaction price. Subsequently, measurement depends on their classification as follows:

* Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets are classified us at fiir value through profit or loss if they are classified as held-for-
trading or are designated as such on initial recognition, and are re-messured to fuir value at the end
of each reporting period. Gains and losses arising from re-measurement are taken to profit or loss,
as are trunsaction cosis,

o Loany and receivables
Loans and receivables including tade receivables ire measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method mcluding a reduction for any impairment losses. Interest income i< mcluded in
finance income.

s Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financinl nssets are non-derivstive financial assets that are not classified in any
ofthe above categories of financial assets and are recognized initially at fair value plus any direotly
attributable transaction costs. At the end of euch reporting period the fair Value is premeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being recognized in other comprehensive income and sccumulated
separutely in equity in the available-for-sule reserve except for the foreign exchange gain or loss on
debt instruments which is recognized in finance income or expenses. When these assets are
derecognized or impaired, the cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from equity 1o profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets that do not have o quoted price in an betive market and whose
fair value cannot be reliably measured are measured af cost less any impairment losses at the end
of each reporting penod.

Interest income on available-for-sale financial assets is recognized in finance income using the
effective interest method. Dividends on available-for-sale equity securitics are recognized in
finance income when the right to receive dividends has been established.




All standards and interpretations will be adopted at their offective date (except for those standards
and interpretations that are not applicable 1o the entity), Of those stundards that are not vet effective,
IFRS 16 and amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 are expected 1o have effect on the institutions’
financial stalements in the period of initial spplication which the Institution is yet 1o assess their

impact,

New stundard or amendiments Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

v Amendments to 1AS | and [AS & Definition of Material 01-Jan-20

v Amendments to references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards 01 Jan,20

v Annual improvements cycle (2015-2017) 01-Jan-20
IFRS 16: Lease
IFRS 16 specifies how an IFRS reporter will recognize, measure, present and disclose leases. The
stundard provides o single lessee accounting model, requiring lessees 1o recognize assets and
liabilities for all leases unless the lease term is 24 months or less or the underlying asset has a low
value. Lessors continue to classify leases as operating or finance, with [FRS 167 approach to lessor
accounting substantially unchanged from its predecessor. IAS 17,

IFRS 3 Business Combinations and IFRS 11 Joint Arrungements

Clarifies how o Company accounts for increasing its interest in a joint operation that meets the
definition of a business;

e If & party maintains (or obtains) joint control, then the previously held interest 18 not
premeasured,

o If a party obtains control, then the transaction is 8 business combination achieved in stages
and the acquiring party premeasures the previously held interest at fair value.

1AS 12 Income taxes
Clarifies that all income tax consequences of dividends (including payments on financial

instruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently with the transactions that generated the
distributable profits — i.e. in profit or loss, OCL
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IAS 23 Borrowing costs

Clarifies that the general borrowings pool used to caleulate eligible borrowing costs excludes only
borrowings that specifically finance qualifying nssets that are still under development or
consiruction. Borrowings that were intended (o spevifically finance qualifying assets that sre now
ready for their intended use or sale — or any non-qualifying assets — are included in that general

pool.

As the costs of retrospective application might outweigh the benefits, the changes are applied
prospectively to borrowing costs incurred on or after the date an entity adopts the amendments.

2.2 Recognition of income and expenses

Policy applicable after 1 July 2018

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Institution and the revenue cin be reliably measured, regardless of when the payment is being made,
Revenue is measured o the fur value of {he consideration received or receivable, taking into

account contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty.

The Institution, eamns income from Interest on loans given for Agricultural, consumption and other
small individual financings. Charges and fees collected from various services rendered to clients

like registration fee, loan application acceptance charges and others.

Interest income and expense
Interest income and expense are recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The
‘effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts

through the expected life of the financial instrutent to: 2

o The gross canying amount of the financial asser; or
*  The amortized cost of the financial Liability
When calculating the effective interest rate for financial instruments other than purchased or
onginated credit-impaired assets, the institution estimates future cash flows considering all
contractual terms of the financial instrument, but not ECL.
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The “amortized cost’ of a financial asset or financial lability is the amount at which the financial
asset or finuncial liability is measured on initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus
or minus the cumulative amortization using the effective interest method of any difference between
that initial amount and the maturity amount and, for financial assets, adjusted for any expected
credit loss allowance (or impairment allowance before | July 2018).

The *"gross carrying amount of a financial asset’ is the amortized cost of a financial ssset before
adjusting for any expected credit loss allowance.

The effective interest rate of o financial asset or financial liability is calculated on initial recognition
of u financial asset o a financial lability, In calculating interest income and expense, the effective
interest rate is applied to the gross carrving amount of the asset (when the asset Is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortized cost of the liability.

However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial recogmition,
interest income 15 calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the
financinl asset. 1f the asset is no longer credit- Impaired, then the calculation of interest income
reverts 1 the gross basis.

For financial assets that were credit-impaired on initial recognition, interest income is calculated by
applying the credit-ndjusted effective interest rute to the amortized cost of the asset. The calculation
of interest income does not revert 1o a gross basis, even if the credit risk of the asset improves.
Interest income and expenses calculated using the effective interest method presented in the
statement of profit or loss and OCI includes:

¢ Interest on financial assets measured at amortized cost:

* Interest on financial kabilities measured at amortized cost"
Policy npplicable before | July 2018
Effective interest rate
Interest income and expense were recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method.
The effective interest rate is 1 method of allocating interest income or interest expense over the
relevant period, 50 as to achieve n constant periodic rate of imerest (effective interest rate¢) on the
carrying amount. The effective interest mite is the mte that exactly discounts estimated future cuh
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payments or receipts (excluding future credit losses) through the expected life of the financial
instrument or a shorter period, if appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial mstrument.
The effective interest rate discounts cash flows of variable interest instruments to the next interest
reprising date, except for the premium or discount which reflects the credit spread over the floating
rate specified in the instrument, or other variables that are not reset 1o marker rates. Such premiums
or discounts are amortized over the whole expected life of the instrument. The present value
caleulation includes sll fees paid or received between parties to the contract that are an integral part
of the effective mterest rate.

I.  Dividend Income
Dividends are recorded in equity in the period in which they are declared. Any dividends declared

after the end of the reporting period and before the financial statements are authorized for issue, are
disclosed in the subsequent events note.

1L Fees and commission income
Fees and commissions are generally recognized on an accrual basis when the service has been

provided. When u loan commitment is not expected to result in the draw-down of a loan, loan
commitment fees ure recognized on a strnight-line basis over the commitment period. Commission
and fees ansing from pegotiating. or participating in the negotiation of, a transaction for a third
party — such as the armngement of the acquisition of bonds, shares or other securities are recognized
on completion of the underlying transaction. Service fees are recognized based on the applicable
service contracts, usually on a time-apportion ate basis. Performance-linked fees or fee components
are recognized when the performance criteria are fulfilled.

2.3, Financial assets and liabilities
IFRS 9 sets out requirements for recognizing and measuring financial assets, financial linbilities

and some contructs to buy or sell non-financial items. This stundard replaces 1AS 39 Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement. The requirements of [FRS 9 represent a significant
change from 1AS 39, The new standasd brings fundimmental changes to the accounting for financial

assets and to certain aspects of the accounting for financial labilities.

1. Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018 "
The Institution initially recognizes receivables from custompfs gn the which they are

originated. All other financial instruments are recognized off e h is the date on
- . S




which the Institution becomes a party (o the contractunl provisions of the instrument. A financial
asset or finuncial lability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Financial assets

The Institution classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss, loans and recelvables, held-to-maturity and available-for-sale financinl nssets.
The Institution determines the classification of its financial sssets at initial recogmition. The
Institution uses wade date accounting for regular wav contracts when recording financial asset
transachons.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category comprises two sub-categories: finuncial assets classified as held for tading, and
financial assets designated by the Institution as at fair value through profit or loss upon initial
recognition.

A Tinancial asset is classified as held for trading it it is scquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term or if it is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of # recent actual
patiern of short-term profit-laking.

The institution designates certuin finuncial assets upon initial recognition as at fair value through
profit or loss (fair value option). This designation cannot subsequently be changed and can only be
applied when the following conditions are met."

* The application of the fair value option reduces or eliminates an accounting mismatch that
would otherwise anse, or '
e The financial assets are part of  portfolio of financial instruments which is risk managed
and reported 1o senior manasgement on & fair value basis
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted

in an active market, other than
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# Those that the Institution upon initial recognition designates as at fisir value through profit
or loss,
# Those that the institution upon initial recognition designates os available-for-sale
Loans and receivables are initially recognized at fair value which is the cash consideration to
originate or purchase the loan including any transaction costs and measured subsequently at
amortized cost,

Available-for-sule financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are financial ussets thut are intended to be held for an indefinite
period of time, which may be sold in response o needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates or
that are not classified as loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investiments or financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognized at fair value, which is the cash
consideration including any transaction costs, and measured subsequently ot fair value with gains
and losses being recognized in other comprehensive income and cumulated in o separale reserve in
equity, fair value reserve, until the financial asset is derccognized. However, interest is caloulated
using the effective iterest method.

Financial Hubilities
The institution's holding in financial Habilitics represents mainly deposits from customers, long
term liabilities and other liabilities,

Such finoncial liabilities are initially recognized ot fuir value und subsequently measured ut
amortized cost.

ii.  Policy applicable from 1 July 2018
Financial assets

On initial recognition, # financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost. FVOCI or Fair
Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL). A financial asset is measured ot amortized cost if it meets
both of the following conditions and 15 not designated as at FVTPL:

o The ssset is held within 4 business model whose objective is 1o hold assets to collect
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* The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
A debt instrument is measured at FVOCI only if it meets both of the following conditions and
1 not designuted as at FVTPL:
¢ The asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets: and
On initial recognition of un equity investment that is not held for trading, the Institution may
wrevocably elect 1o present subsequent changes in fuir value in OCL This election 15 made on an
investment -by-investmen: basis,
All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL. In addition, on initial recognition,
the Institution may irrevocably designate a financinl asset that otherwise meets the requirements to
be measured at amortized cast or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so climinates or significantly
reduces an nccounting mismatch that would otherwise arise,

Business model assessment

The Institution makes an assessment of the objective of a business model in which an assct is held
at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is
provided 10 management. The information considered includes:

v The stated policies and objectives for the ponfolio and the operation of those policies in
practice, In particular, whether management's strategy focuses on carning contructual interest
revenue, mamtaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the durntion of the financial
assels o the duration of the liabilities that are funding those ussets or realizing cash flows
through the sale of the assets; :

¥ How the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Institution's
management;

¥ The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held
within that business model) and its strategy for how those risks are managed;

Financial sssets that are held for trmding or munaged and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL because they are neither held 1o collect contractual cash flows
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nor held both to collect contractual cash flows and 1o sell financial assets. Assessment of whether
contractual cash flows ure solely payments of principal and interest.

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fuir value of the financial usset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the
credit nisk- associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and
for other basic lending risks and costs (e-g. hquidity risk and sdministrative costs), as well us profit
margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPL, the Institution considers the contractual
terms of the instrument. This includes assessang whether the financinl ssset contains o contractual
term that could change the timing or amoust of cottractul cash flows such that it would not meet
this condition. In making the assessment, the Institution consider

e Contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;

* Prepayment and extension terms;

* Terms that limit the Institution's claim 10 cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non—
recourse loans); and

* Features that modify consideration of the time value of money (¢.g. periodical reset of
interest rates),
* Leverage features
The Institution holds a portfolio of long-term fixed-rate louns for which the Institution has the option

o propose 1o revise the interest mte at peniodic reset dates. These neset rights are limited to the
muarket rale at the time of revision, The borrowers huve an option to either acoept the revised rate
or redeem the loan at par without peaalty. The Institution has determined that the contractual cash
flowt of these loans are SPPI because the Option varies the interest rate in a way that is consideration
for the ume value of money, credit risk, other basic lending risks and costs nssocinted with the
principal amount outstanding.
Non-recourse louns

In some cases. loans made by the Institution that are secured by collateral of the borrower limit the
Institution's claim to cash flows of the underlying collaters! (non-recourse loans). The Institution
applies judgment in assessing whether the pon-recourse loans meel the SPPI criterion. The

Institution typically considers the following informution when making this judgment:




* whether the contructual arrangement specifically defines the amounts und dates of the cash
payments of the loan;

e The fuir value of the collateral relative 10 the amount of the secured financinl asset:

* The ability and willingness of the borrower to make contractusl payments, notwithstanding

a decline in the value of collateral;

*  whether the borrower is an individual or a substantive operating entity or is a special purpose
entity;
o The Institution's risk of loss on the asset relative 10 a full-recourse loan:
o The extent to which the collateral represents all or a substantial portion of the borrower's
assets; and
*  Whether the Institution will benefit from any upside from the underlying nssets.
Contractually linked instruments
The Institution has some investments in securitizations that are considered contractually linked
instruments, Contractually linked instruments each have a specified subordination ranking that
determines the order in which nny cash flows generated by the pool of underlying investments are
allocated to the instruments. Such an instrument meets the SPPI criterion only if all of the following
conditions ure met:

# The contractual terms of the instrument itself give rise to cash flows that are SPPI without
lovking through to the underlying pool of financial instruments;

# The underlying pool of financial instruments (1) containg one or mote instruments that
give rise 10 cash flows that are SPPI; and (ii) may also contain instruments, such as
derivatives, that reduce the cash flow variability of the instruments under (i) and the
combined cash flows (of the instruments under (i) and (1)) give rise to cash flows that
are SPPL; or align the cash flows of the contractually linked instruments with the cash
flows of the pool of underlying instruments under (1) arising us & result of differences in
whether interest rates are fixed or floating or the currency or timing of cash flows; and

# The expostire to credit risk inherent in the contractually linked instruments is equal to or
less than the exposure to credit risk of the underlying pool of financial instruments.




Reclassifications

Financial ussets ure not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except in the period after
the Institurion changes its business model for managing financial assets.

Financial labilities
The Insutution classifies its financial linbilities, other than financial guarantees and loan
commitments, as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.

De-recognition

iii.  Policy applicable from 1 July 2018
Financial assets

The Institution derecognizes a financisl asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financinl asset expire or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset ane transferred
or in which the Institution neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks und rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset,

De-recognition of a financial asset, the difference between the carrying amount of the asset (or the
carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset derecognized) and the sum of (i) the
consideration received (including sny new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and (i)
any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCI is recognized in profit or loss.

From | July 2018 any cumulative gain/loss recognized in OCI in respect of equity investment
securities designated as at FVOCT is not recognized in profit or loss on DE recognition of such
securities, Any interest in transferred financial assets that qualify for De recognition that s create
or retained by the Iastitution is recognized as o séparte asset or liability,

The Institution enters into tmnsactions whereby it transfers assets recognized on its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets of a portion of them. In such cases, the transferred assets are not de-recognized. Examples of

such transactions are securities Jending and sale and repurchase transactions.

When assets ire sold to a third party with & concurrent total rate of return swap on the transferred
assets, the L ign is accounted for as a secured financing transaction similar 1w sale and
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repurchase transactions, because the Institution retuing #ll or substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of such assets.

In transactions in which the Institution neither retains nor transfess substantinlly all of the risks und
rewards of ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Institution
continues to recognize the asset 1o the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent
1o which it is exposed 1o changes in the value of the transferred asset.

In certain transactions, the Institution retains the obligation to service the transforred financial asset
for a fee. The trunsferred asset is derecognized if it meets the de-recognition criteria. An asset or
lability is recognized for the servicing contract if the servicing fee is more than sdequato (asset) or
15 less than adequate (liability) for pecforming the servicing.

Finuncial labilities

The Institution derecognizes a financial linbitity when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire,

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018

Financial assets are de-recognized when the contractual rights to receive the cash flows from these
assets have ceased to exist or the assets have been transferred and substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the assets ure also transferred (that is, if substantially all the risks and
rewirds have not been transferred, the Institution tests control to ensure that continuing involvement
on the basis of any retained powers of control does not prevent de-recognition), Financial ligbilities
are derecognized when they have been redecmed or otherwise extinguished.
Iv.  Modifications of financial assets and financial
Liubilities Policy applicable from | July 2018

Financial ussets

If the terms of a financial asset are modified, then the Institution evaluates whether the cash flows
of the modified asset are substantially different. If the cash flows are substantially different, then
the contructual rights to cash flows from the original finuncial asset are deemed to have expired. In
this case, the original financial asset is derecognized and a new financial asset is recognized at fair
value plus any cligi.ble‘ transaction costs. Any fees received as part of the modification are accounted
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* Fees that are considered in determining the fair value of the new usset and fees that represent
reimbursement of eligible transaction costs are included in the initinl measuroment of the
asset; andd

*  Other fees are included in profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on De-recognition.

If cash flows are modified when the borrower is in financial difficulties, then the objective of the
modification is usually o maximize recovery of the original contractual terms rather than to
originate i new asset with substantially difterent terms. If the Institution plans to modify a financial
assetin a way that would result in forgiveness of cash flows, then it first considers whether a portion
of the asset should be written off before the modification takes place.

If the modification of a financial asset measured at amortized cost or FVOCT does not result in De-
recognition of the financial asset. then the Institation first recaleulates the gross carryving amount of
the finuncial usset using the original effective interest rate of the asset and recognizes the resulting
adjustment as n modification gain or loss in profit or loss. For floating—rate financial assets, the
original effective interest rate used 1o caleulate the modification gain or loss is adjusted to reflect
current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs or fees incurred and foes received
as part of the modification adjust the gross carrying amount of the modified financial asset and are
amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial asset.

If such a modification is carried out because of financial difficulties of the borrower, then the gain
orloss is presented together with impairment losses. In other cases, it is presented as interest income
calculated using the effective interest rte method.

Financial linbilities

The Institution de-recognizes o financial Hability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of
the modified liability ure substantially different. In this case. a new finuncial liability based on the
modified terms i recognized at fair value, The difference between the cirrying amount of the
financial liability derecognized and consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss. Consideration
paid includes non-financial assets transferred, if any, and the assumption of liabilities. including the
new medified financial liability,

If the modification of a financial liability is not secounted for as de-recognition, then the amortized
cost of the liability is recalculated by discounting the modified cash flows at the original effcn




interest rute and the resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss. For floating-rate {inuncial
liabilities, the vriginal effective interest rute used to calculate the modification grin or loss is
adjusted to reflect current market terms at the time of the modification. Any costs and fees incurred
are recognized s an adjustment o the carrying amount of the hability and amortized over the
remaming term of the modified financial lability by re-computing the effective interest rate on the
instrument.

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018
Financial assets

If the terms of a financial assot were modified, then the Institution evaluated whether the cush flows
of the modificd usset were substantially different. If the cash flows were substantially different, then
the contractual rights to cash flows from the original financial asset were deemed to have expired.
In this cave, the onginal financial asset wos de-recognized and n new financial asset was recognized

at fair value,

I the terms of a financial asset were modified because of financial difficulties of the borrower and
the asset was not derecognized, then impairment of the asset was measured using the pre-
modification interest rate.”

Finaacial liabilities

The Institution der-recognized o financial lability when its terms were modified and the cash flows
of the modified lisbility were substantially different. In this case, o new financial liability based on
the modified terms was recognized at fair value, The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability extinguished und consideration paid was recognized in profit or loss.
Consideration puid included non-financial assets transterred, if uny. and the assumption of
liabilities, including the new modified finuncial linbility,

If the modification of a financial Hability was not accounted for as de-recognition, then any costs
and fees incurred were recognized as an adjustment to the carrving amount of the liability and
amortized over the remaining term of the modified financial liability by re-computing the effective

interest rate on the instrament
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Fair value measurement

Policy applicable prior from 1 July 2018

Fair value' is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a Hability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date in the principal or, in its

absence, the most ndvantageous market to which the Institution has access at that date, The fair

value of a lability reflects its non-performaunce risk

When one is available, the Institution measures the fuir value of an Instrument using the quoted
price in an gctive market {or that instrument. A market is regarded ax ‘active’ if trangactions foc the
asset or liability take place with sufTicient froquency and volume to provide pricing information on
an ongoing basis,

If there is'no quoted price in an active market, then the Institution uses valuation techniques that
maximize the use of relevant observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs. The
chosen valuation technique incorparates all of the factors that market participants would take into

account n PrCing a ransaction,

The best evidence of the fair value of & financial instrument on initial recogmition is normally the
transaction price- Le. the fuir value of the consideration given or received. if the Institution
determines that the fair value on initial recognition differs from the transaction price and the fair
value is evidenced neither by a quoted price in an active market for an identical asset or liability nor
based on & valumion rechnique for which any unobservable inputs ure judged to be insignificant in
relation to the measurement, then the financial instrument is initially measured at fair value, adjusted
10 defer the difference between the fair value on initial recognition and the transaction price.

Subsequently, that difference is recognized in profit or loss on an appropriate basis over the life of
the instrument but no ater than when the valuation s wholly supported by observable market data

or the transaction 1s closed out.

If an usset or a liability measured at fitir value has a bid price and an ask price, then the Institution
measures assets and long positions at o bid price and liabilities and short positions at un ask price,
If an asset or a liability measured at fair value has 4 bid price and an ask price, then the Institution
MCASUITS BSSeLs ang _!ong pasitions at a bid price and liabilities and short positions at an nsk price,
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Portfolios of financial assets and financial labilitics that are exposed to market risk and credit risk
that are munaged by the Institution on the basis of the net exposure to either market or credit risk
are measured on the basis of a price that would be received to sell & net long position (or paid to
transfer a net short position) for the particular risk exposure. Portfolio level adjustments e.g. bid-
ask adjustment or credit risk adjustments that reflect the measurement on the basis of the net
exposure are allocated to the individual assets and liabilities on the basis of the relative risk
adjustment of cach of the individual instruments in the portfolio,

The foir value of a financial Liability with a demand feature (e.g. a demand deposit) is not less than
the amount payable on demand, discounted from the first date on which the amount could be
required to be puid. The Institution recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy
as of the end of the reporting period during which the change has occurred.

Policy applicable prior to 1 July 2018
For financial instruments traded in active markets, the determination of fair values of financial
instruments is based on quoted market prices or dealer price quotations. This includes listed equity

securities and quoted debt instruments on major exchanges and broker quotes from Nairobi

Securities Exchange, Bloomberg und Reuters.

A financial instrument is regarded as quoted in an active market if quoted prices are readily and
regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing service ar regulatory
agency, and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm's
length basis. If the above criteria are not met, the market is regarded as being inactive, Indicators
that a market is mactive are when there is a wide bid-offer spread or significant increase in lhc bid-
offer spread or there are few recent transactions.

For all other financial instruments, fair value is determined using valuation techmiques. In these
techniques, fair values are estmated from observable data in respect of similur financial
instruments, '

The Institution uses widely recognized valuation models for determining fair values of non-
standardized financial instruments of lower complexity, such as options or interest rate and currency

a7



o

gr— g— p——

For more complex instruments, the Institution uses intermally developed models, which are usually
based on valuation methods and techniques generally recognized as standard within the industry.
Valuation models such as present value techniques are used primarily to value derivatives transacted
in the over the counter market, unlisted debt securities (including those with embedded derivatives)
and other debt instruments for which markets were or have become illiquid. Some of the inputs to
these models muy not be market observable and are therefore estimated based on assumptions.,

The Institution recognizes loss allowances for ECL on the following financial instruments that are
not measured at FVTPL:

e finuncial ussets that are debt instroments;
o lease receivables;
e [financial guarantee contracts issued; and
¢ Loan commitments issued.
No impairment loss is recognized on equity investments.
The Institution measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following, for which they are measured as | 2-month ECL:
o Debt investment securities that are determined 1o have low credit risk at the reporting date;
and
e Other financial instruments (other than lease receivables) on which credit risk has not
mcreased significantly since their initial recognition,
Loss allowances for lease receivables are always measured ot an smount equal to lifetime ECL.
The Institution considers a debt investment security 10 have low credit risk when its credit
risk rating is equivalent (o the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade’. The !'nstimtion
does not apply the low credit risk exemption to any other financial instruments.

12 month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default ¢vents on a financial instrument that
are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date. Financial instruments for which a |2—

month ECL is recognized are referred 10 as 'Stage | financial instruments”.




Life time ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected life of the
finuncial instrument. Financial instruments for which  lifetime ECL is recognized but which are
not eredit-impared are referred to as "Stage 2 financial instruments’. ECL are o probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses. They are measured as follows:

* Financial assets that are not credit-impaired it the reporting date: us the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance
with the contract and the cash flows that the Institution expects 1o receive);

o Financial assets that aro credit-impaired ot the reporting date: as the difference between the
pross carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows;

e Undrawn loan commitments: as the present value of the difference between the contractual
cash flows that are due to the Institution if the commitment is drawn down and the cash flows
that the Institution expects to receive; and

¢ Financial guarantee contracts: the expected payments to reimburse the holder less any
amounts that the Institution expects 10 recover.

Ifthe terms of a financial asset are rencgotiated or modified or an existing financial asset is replaced
with a new one due to financial difficulties of the borrower, then an assessment is made of whether
the financial asset should be derecognized and ECL are measured as follows

o Ifthe expected restructuring will not result in de-recognition of the existing asset, then the
expected cash flows arising from the modificd financial asset are included in calculating the
cash shorfalls from the existing asset,

o If the expected restructuring will result in de-recognition of the existing nsset, then the
expected fuir value of the new asset is treated as the final cash flow from the existing financial
assel at the time of its de-recognition. This amount is included in calculutin'g the cash
shortfalls from the existing financial asset that are discounted from the expected date of de-

recognition to the reporting date using the original effective interest rate of the existing
financial asset.

Credit-impaired financial assets
Al each reporting date, the Institution assesses whether financial assets carmed at amortized cost

and debt financial pssets carried ot FYOCL and finonce lease receivables are crcdil-impgircd




(referred 10 as ‘Stage 3 financial assets’), A financiol ssset is ‘eredit-impaired' when one or more

events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:
e Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
* A breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
 The restructuring of a loan or advance by the Institution on terms that the Institution would
Bot consider otherwise;
® It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptey or other ﬁnﬂnﬂd,
reorganzation; or
* The disappearance of an sctive market for a security because of financial difficulties.
A loan that bas been rencgotiated due to u deterioration in the borrower’s condition is usually
considered fo be credit-impaired unless there 1s evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual
cush flows has reduced significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. In addition, a

retail loan that is overdue for 90 days or more is considered credit-impaired even when the
regulatory definition of default is different.

In making an assessment of whether an investinent in soversign debt Is credit-impaired, the

Institution considers the followng factors

* The market's assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields.

* The rating agencies’ assessments of creditworthiness.

* The country's ability to access the capital markets for new debt issuance.

* The probability of debt beng restructured, resulting in holders suffering losses thmugh

* Voluntary or mandatory debt forgiveness.
The international support mechanisms in place to provide the necessary support as lender of last
resort’ to that country, as well as the intention, reflected in public statements, of governments and
agencies 10 use those mechanisms. This includes an assessment of the depth of those mechanisms

and, irespective of the political intent, whether there is the capacity to fulfil the required criteria.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position




7 Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of finuncial position as follows:

‘l

Financial assets messured at amortized cost! us a deduction from the gross carrying amount
of the assets;

# Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: gencrally, as a provision;

Where u financial instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the
Institution cannot identify the ECL on the loan commitment component separately from
those on the drawn component: the Institution presents a combined loss allowance for both
components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying

amount of the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of

N

the drawn component |s presented as a proviston; and

N

Debt instruments measured at FVOCK no loss sllowance is recognized in the statement of
financial position because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. Hosvever,
the loss allowance is disclosed and is recognized in the fair value reserve.

Loans and debt securities are written off (either partinlly or in full) when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering a financial asset in 118 entirety or & portion thercof. This i1s generally the
case when the Institution determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income
that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject 1o the write off. This
assessment 15 carried ont at the individual asset level,

Recovenies of amounts previously written off are incloded in 'impairment losses on financial
mstruments’ in the statement of profit or Joss and OCL Finoncial assets that are wnitten off could

still be subject to enforcement activities in order 1o comply with the Institution's procedures for
recovery of amounts due.

The Institution ussesses whether a financial guarantee contract held is an integral element of a
financial asset that is sccounted for as a component of that instrument or is a contract that is

accounted for separutely. The factors that the Institution considers when making this assessment
include whether:

o  The guarantee i imphicitly part of the contructual terms of the debt instrument:
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* The guarantee is required by laws and regulations that govern the contruct of the debt
instrument;
¢ The guarantee is entered into at the same time as and in contemplation of the debt instrument;
and
e The guarsntee is given by the parent of the borrower or another company within the
borrower's Bank.
If the Institution determines that the guarantee 15 an integral clement of the financial asset, then any
premium payable in connection with the initial recognition of the financial asset is treated as a
transaction cost of acquiring it. The Institution considers the effect of the protection when measuring
the fair value of the debt instrument and when measuring ECL.
If'the Institution determines that the guaruntec is notan integral clement of the debt instrument, then
I recognizes an asset representing any prepayment of goamntee premium and a night to
compensation for credit losses. A prepaid premium asset is recognized only if the guaranteed
expaosure neither is credit-impaired nor has undergone a significant increase in credit risk when the
guanantee is acquired. These assets are recognized in 'other assets'. The Institution presents gains or
losses on o compensation right in profit or loss in the line item "impairment losses on financial
nstruments’,

At each reporting date, the Institution assessed whether there was objective evidence that financial
assets pot carricd at FVTPL were impaired. A financial asset or o Bank of financial assets wag
mpaired” when objective evidence demonsirated that a loss event had oceurred after the mitial
recognition of the asset(s) and that the loss event had an impact on the future cash flows of the
asset(s) that could be estimated reliably.

In addition, a loan that was overdue for 90 days or more was considered impaired, Objective
evidence that financial assets were impaired included:

-

» significant financial difficuity of a borrower or issuer;
7 defuult or delinquency by a borrower;
# the restructuring of & loan or advance by the Institution on terms that the Institution would

not consider otherwise:
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indications that a borrower or issuer would enter bankruptey;

N

the disuppearance of an active market for a security; or

‘l

Observable data relating to s Bank of assets, such as adverse changes in the payment status
of borrowers or issuers in the Institution or economic conditions that correlated with defhults
in the Institution.

A loan that was rencgotiated due 1o the deterioration in the borrower's condition was usvally
considered 1o be impaired unless there was evidence that the risk of not receiving contractual cash
flows had reduced significantly and there were no other indicators of impairment.

In addition. for :n investment in an equity security, » significant or prolonged decline in its fair
value below its cost was objective evidence of impairment. In general, the Institution considered a
decline of 20% 10 be ‘significant’ and a period of nine months to be prolonged’. However, in specific
circumstances o smaller decline or n shorter period may have been uppmpri;&.

The Instintion considered evidence of impairment for loans and advances and held-to-maturity
investment securities at both a specific asset and a collective level, All individually significant loans
and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities were assessed for specific impairment.
Those found not to be specifically impaired were then collectively assessed for any impairment that
had been incurred but not yet identified. Loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment
securities that were not individually significant were collectively assessed for impairment by
grouping together loans and advances and held-to-maturity investment securities with similar credit
risk charncteristics,

In making an assessment of whether an investment in sovereign debt was impaired, the Institution
considerad the following factors :

# The market's assessment of creditworthiness as reflected in the bond yields.

# The rating agencics' assessments of creditworthiness.

# The country's ubility to sccess the capital markets for new debt issuance.

# The probability of debt being restructured. resulting in holders suffering losses through
voluntary or mandatory debt forgivencss,
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# The international support mechanisms in place 1o provide the necessary support as 'lender of
last reson’ o that country, as well s the intention, reflected in public statements, of
governments and agencies to use those mechanisms. This included an sssessment of the
depth of those mechanisms and, irrespective of the political intent, whether there was the
capacity to fulfill the required criteria.

An individual measurement of impairment was based on manasgement's best estimate of the present
value of the cash flows that were expected 10 be received. In estimating these cash flows,
management made judgments about a debtor’s finuncial situation and the net realizable value of any
underlying collateral. Each impaired asset was assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and

estimute of cash flows considered recoverable were independently approved by the Credit Risk
function.

An individual measurement of impairment was based on munagement's best estimate of the present
vitlue of the cash flows that were expected to be received, In cstimating these cash fows,
management made judgments about a debtor’s financial situation und the net realizable value ol any
underlying collaterul. Each impaired asset was assessed on its merits, and the workout strategy and

estimate of cash flows considered recoverable were independently upproved by the Credit Risk
function,

The collective allowance for groups of homogeneous loans was established using statistical
methods such as roll rute methodology or, for small portfolios with insufficient information, a
formuls approach based on historical loss rate experience. The roll rate methodology used statistical
analysis of historical data on delinquency to estimate the amount of loss. Management applied
Judgment to ensure that the estimate of Joss arrived at on the basis of historical information was
appropriately adjusted to reflect the economic conditions and product mix at the reporting date, Roll
rates and loss rutes were regularly benchmarked against actual loss expenence.

The IBNR allowance covered credit losses inherent in portfolios of loans and advances, and held to
matarity mvestment securities with similar credit risk charscteristics when there was objective
evidence to suggest that they contained impaired items but the individual impaired items could nos
yet be identified.




In assessing the need for collective loss allowance, management considered factors such as credit
Hquality, portfolio size, concentrations and economic factors: To estimate the required allowance,
issumptions were made 1o define how inherent losses were modeled and 1o delermine the required
input parameters, based on historical experience and current economic conditions, The acouracy of
the allowance depended on the model assumptions and parameters used in determining the
collective allowance, Loans that were subject 10 a collective IBNR provision were not considered
impaired,

Impairment losses an assets measured ot smortized cost were calculated as the difference between
the carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset’s

original effective interest rate. Impairment losses on available-for-sale assets were calculated as the
difference between the carrying amount and the fiir value.

For nssets measured ot amortized cost: 1€ an event occurming aller the impairment was recognized

caused the amount of impuirment loss to decrease, then the decrease in impairment loss was
reversed through profit or loss.

For available-for-sale debt security: If. in g subsequent period, the fair value of an impaired debt
security increased and the increase could be related objectively 10 an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognized, then the impatrment loss was reversed through profit or loss,
otherwise, any increase in fair value was recognized through OCI. Any subsequent recovery in the
fair value of an impaired available-for-sale equity security was always recognized in OCL"

Impairment losses were recognized in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account against
toans and receivables or held-to-maturity investment securities. Interest on the impaired assets
continied to be recognized through the unwinding of the discount. Impairment losses on available-
for-sale investment securities were tecognized by reclassifying the losses nccumulated in the fair
value reserve in equity to profit or loss, The cumulative loss that was reclassified from equity to
profit or loss was the difference between the acquisition cost, net of any principal repayment and
amortization, and the current fair value, less any impairment loss previously recognized in profit or
loss. Changes in impairment attributable 1o the application of the effective interest method were
reflected as & ¢g Qf interest income.
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The Institution write-off a loan or an investment debt security, either partially or in full, and uny

related allowance for impairment losses, when the Institution Credit determined that there wus no
realistic prospect of recovery.

Al injtal recognition, the Institution has designated certain financial nssets as at FVTPL because
this designation eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch, which would otherwise
arise. Before 1 July 2018, the Institution also designated certain financial assets as at FVTPL
because the assets were managed, evaluated und reported internally on a fair value basis. The
Institution bas designated certain financial liabilities as at FVTPL in cither of the following

circumstances:

* The liabilities are managed, evaluated and reported internally on a fair value basis: or the
designation eliminates or

* Significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
Offsetting financial instruments
Financial asscts and linbilitics are offset and the net amount teporied in the statement of financial

position when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized umounts and there is an
intention 10 settle on a net basis or realize the asset and settle the liability simultancously,

2.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand. demand deposits with banks and
other financial institutions, demand deposits with third party merchants, and short-term, highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts of ¢ash and which are subject
10 an msignificant risk of changes {n value. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form
anintegral part of the institurion’s cash munagement are ilso included s o component of cash and
cash equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,

2.5 Property, plant and equipﬁent
. Cost

ltems of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less sccumulated depreciation and

impairment losscs}gﬁ?,__‘ '
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assets including for self-constructed assets, the cost of materials, direct labor, the initial estimate,
where appropriate, of the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring the site on
which they are located, and an appropriate proportion of production overheads and borrowing costs.

Cuonstruction in progress is transferred to other property, plunt and equipment when it is ready for
1S intenced use.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of property, plunt and equipment
are determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
item and are recognized in profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal,

1. Depreciation
Depreciation is caleulsted to write off the cost of items of property, plant and equipment and

investment property, less their estimated residunl value, if any, using the straight line method over
thewr estimated useful lives as follows:

As a ; i ea
Building 20-50
Maotor Vehigle 5
Fumniture and Fittings 5-10
Office equipment 5-20
Computer equipment and sccessorics 7-10

2.6 Intangible

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets arc carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and secumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangibles, excluding capitalized devilopment
casts, are not capitalized and the reluted expenditure is reflected in income statement in the period

in which the expenditure 15 incurred

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed 1o be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortized over the useful economic life. The amortization period and the
amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed st least @t each
financial year-end. Changes in the expected useful life, or the expected pattern of consumption of
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future economic benefits embodied in the asset, are accounted for by changing the umortization
period or methodology, as appropriate, which are then treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortization expenses on intangible assets with finite lives is presented as a separate line item
in the income statement

2.7 Investment Property

Property that is hield for long-term rental vields or for capital appreciation or both, are classified as
investment properties. Recognition of investment properties takes ploce only when it is probable
that the future cconomic benefits thut are associated with the investment property will flow to The
Institution and the cost can be reliably measured. This is usually when all risks are trunsferred.

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The Institution has
opted to subsequently carry investment property st cost and disclose fair value. Fair value is based
on active market prices, adjusted if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If this information is not available, The Institution uses alternative valuation
methods, such 45 recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash flow projections.
Valuations are performed as of the reporting date by professional values who hald recognized and
relevant professional qualifications and have recent experience in the location snd category of the
investment property being valued. These valuations form the basis for the cuITyIng amounts in the
financial statemenis.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other things, rental income from current leases
and ussumptions about rental income from futtire leases in the light of current market conditions.

The Tair value of investment property does not refloct future capital expenditure that will-improve
or enhance the property and does not reflect the related future benefits from this future expenditure

other than those a rational market participant would take into account when determining the value
of the property,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized to the usset’s carrying amount only when it is probable that
future economic benefits associated with the expenditure will flow to The Institution and the cost

of the item can Qc_tggnsurcd reliably. All other repaits and maintenance costs are expensed when

™




incurred. When part of an investment property is replaced, the carrying amount of the roplaced purt
is derecognized

Investment properties are derecognized when they have been disposed. Where The Institution
disposes of i property at fair value in an arm's length transaction, the carrving value immediately
prior to the sale s adjusted to the transaction price, and the adjustment is recorded in the statement

of changes in net assets available for benefie”

L8, Other Assety
Other assets arc generally defined as claims held ugainst other entities for the future receipt of

money. The other assets in the Institution’s financial statements include the following:

a) Prepayment
Prepayments ure payments made in advance for services to be enjoyed in future, The amount is

initially capitalized in the reporting period in which the payment is made and subsequently
amortized over the period in which the service is to be enjoyed.

b) Other receivables
Other receivables are recognized upon the occurrence of event or transaction us they arise and

cancelled when payment is received. The Institution’s other receivables are reccivables from
debtors.

2.9 Leased assets

Most of the institution’s leases are operating leases which do not transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership to the institution.

Payments made uader the leases are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covering the lease term, except where an alternative basis is more representative
of the pattern of benefits o be derived from the leased nsset. Lease incentives received are
recognized in profit or lass as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments made. Contingent
rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are incurred

2,10 Employee benefits

Salaries, annual leave and contributions (o defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
NON-MOneLiry b}cﬁquaccrucd m the year in which the associated services are rendered by




employees. Where payment or settfement is deferred and the effect would be material, these
amounts are stated a1 their present values.

2.11 Severance payment

As per the labor proclamation no 1156/2019 Section 3 Article 39, the employee right 1o receive
severance pay and compensation defined as a worker who has completed his probation period and
who is not eligible for pension shall have the right 1o receive severance pay. Hence the institution

estimates and accounts severance pay for subsequent period based vn the service period of

employees and the institution's attrition rate

2.12 Share capital

Share capital is the total of the institution’s shares that are held by sharcholders. Ordinary shares

are classified as share capital in equity, Any premium received over und above the par value of the
shares is classified as share premium.

2.13 Legal reserve

In accordance with the Commercial code of Ethiopia, 1960 Article 554, a 5% provision for legal
reserve shall be made from the current year's net profit until it reaches twenty percent (20%) of the
registered cupital.

2.13 Government Grant
Govemment grunts are recognized where there is reasonable ussursnce that the grant will be

received and all stached conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, 3 is recognized as income on o systematic busis over the periods that the related costs, for
which it is intended to compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates (o an asset, it is recognized
as income in equal amounts over the expected useful life of the related asset.

When the Institution receives grants of non-monctary assets, the asset and the grant are recorded at
nominal amounts and teleased 10 income statement over the expected useful life in a pattern of
consumption of the benefit of the underlying usset by equal annual instalments.”




2,14 Impairment of non-financial assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at the end of each roporting period to
identify indications that non-financial assets, including property, plant and equipment, long-term
leasehold prepayments, intangible assets and other long-term assets may be impaired.

2.15 Provisions und contingent labilities

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount when the institution has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of 4 past event, it is probable that an outflow of
cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Wheie it 15 not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be reliably estimated, disclosure is made of the contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of ofie or more fature events, are also disclosed as contingent
liubilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or umount when the institution has a
legal or constructive obligstion arising as o result of 9 past event, it is probable that an cutflow of
cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and  reliable estimate can be made.
Where the time value of money is material, provisions ure stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be requured, or the amount cannot
be reliably estimated, disclosure is made of the contingent linbility, unless the probability of vutflow
of econumic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events. are also disclosed a5 contingent
liabilities unless the probabilit.y of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Provisions are recognized for liabilities of uncertain timing or amount whea the institution has a

legal or constructive obligation arising us a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
I 4 = > —

cconomic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and o reliable estiffiaté can be made.
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Where the time value of money is material, provisions are stated wt the present value of the

expenditure expected 1o settle the obligation

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the amount cannot
be reliably estimated, disclosure 1s made of the contingent ligbility, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events ure also disclosed as contingent
linbilities unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits 15 remote.

3. Accounting judgments and estimates

a) Accounting judgments
To determine the satisfaction of performance obligations the institution applies the following

judgments;

o  Where revenue s recognized over time, the institution primarily uses the output method to
measure progress; in limited business units, the input method is adopted when the institution
15 unable to reasonably measure the outcome of a performance obligation, Judgments applied
when using the output method include assessing progress and milestones achieved and
determining if that represents the value of goods and/ or services delivered 1o the customer
0 date. Judgments applied when using the input method include determining if consumption
of the resources refative to the total expected amount faithfully depicts the transfer of control
of goods and/or services promised to the customer.

o  Where revenue is recognized uta point in time, the Institution assesses the transfer of control
by reference 10 the contractusl terms and the Circumstance of the arrangements including &
consideration of past business practice. These include having a legal right to payment, title
hus passed, the customer has the risks and rewards of ownership, or the customer is using
the asset 1o generate value for themselves.

b) Sources of estimation uncertainty
Key sources of estimation uncertainty are as follows.

i.  Revenue recognition
To determine the transaction price and the smounts allocated to performance obligations the

institution apphies the following estimation:




* Varnable consideration is estimated using the most likely amount or expected value based on
the nature of the specific consideration and the analysis of relevant contract terms, taking
mto consideration historical, current and expected information.

* Obligations for returns and refunds ure judged based on estimates made from historical
information associated with similar products and anticipated rates of claims for the products.

* The collectability of a consideration is estimated af contract inception, based on the
institution's assessment on the customer’s ability and intention to pay when due, The above
estimation is inherent in revenue recognition and revenue may materially change if
management’s estimation were to change or 1o be found innceurate.

il.  lmpairment of trade receivables and contract assets
The credit risk of customers is regularly assessed with a focus on the customer’s ability and

willingness to pay, reflected by the institution’s estimation of the expected credit loss allowance on
trade receivables and contract assets, the institution estimates expected credit loss by assessing the
loss that will be incurred given customer default based on past payment experience and adjusted by
the cash flow expected from collateral or credit risk mitigation received where these are considered
1o be integral to the asset, and by assessing the probability of default taking into sccount information
spoaific (o the customer as well as pertaining to the country and economic environment in which
the customer operates. From January 1, 2019 the estimate aiso incorporates forward looking data.
Impairment is assessed on an individual basis for trade receivables and contract sssets meeting pre-
determined criterin, including customers in financial difficulties, and contracts with risk mitigation
arrangements or significant financing arangements e1c. Apart from receivables and contract assets
that have been dssessed and provided for individually, allowanices are estimated using provision
matrices by munagement with reference to the custommers® credit risk ratings and aging“analysis of
the remaining trade receivable and contract asset balances, Different proviston matrices have been
developed by the institution based on different customer groups which indicate different risk
charucteristics,

iii.  Net realizable value of inventorics
The net realizable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 1o make the ssle.

| on the current murket condition m istorical experience of
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distributing and selling products of similar nature. They could change significantly as 4 result of
COmpetitor uCtioNs in (esponse 10 severe industry cycles or other changes in market condition,
Management will reassess the estimations at the end of each reporting period.

iv.  Deprecintion and amortization
Property, plant and equipment ure depreciated of a strarght-line basis over the estimated useful

lives, afier taking into account the estimated residual value. Intangible assets with finite useful life
are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives. Both the period and method
of depreciation and amortization are reviewed annually. The depreciation and amortization expense
for future periods is adjusted if there are significant changes, such us operational efficiency or
changes in technologies, fiom previous estimates.




